# ESD RECORD COPY

RETURN TO SCIENTIFIC & TECHNICAL INFORMATION DIVISION (ESTI), BUILDING 1211

ES	SD	A	CC	CE	S	5101	NL	IST.
ESTI	Call	No.	P	A	L	52	19	9
Сору	No.			1	0	f	1	cys.

ESD-TR-66-344

ESD-TR-66-344 ESTI FILE COPN

ł

## LAYER OF MAXIMUM WIND ANALYSIS TECHNIQUE

David B. Spiegler

August 1966



Distribution of this document is unlimited.

433L SYSTEM PROGRAM OFFICE ELECTRONICS SYSTEMS DIVISION AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND UNITED STATES AIR FORCE L. G. Hanscom Field, Bedford, Mass.

ESSWE

AD063-2608

Qualified users may obtain copies of this report from the Defense Documentation Center.

When U. S. Government drawings, specifications, or other data are used for any purpose other than a definitely related Government procurement operation, the Government thereby incurs no responsibility nor any obligation whatsoever, and the fact that the Government may have formulated, furnished, or in any way supplied the said drawings, specifications, or other data, is not to be regarded by implication or otherwise, or in any manner licensing the holder or any other person or corporation, or conveying any rights or permission to manufacture, use, or sell any patented invention that may in any way be related thereto. ESD-TR-66-344

## LAYER OF MAXIMUM WIND ANALYSIS TECHNIQUE

David B. Spiegler

August 1966



433L SYSTEM PROGRAM OFFICE ELECTRONICS SYSTEMS DIVISION AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND UNITED STATES AIR FORCE L. G. Hanscom Field, Bedford, Mass.

#### FOREWORD

System 433L: project 3.0; task 3.1. This TR has been prepared for the 433L System Program Office under Contract No. AF19(628)-4924 by THE TRAVELERS RESEARCH CENTER, INC., 250 Constitution Plaza, Hartford, Conn. The Research Center's publication number is <u>7479-230</u>. Robert L. Houghten, Lt. Colonel, USAF, is System Program Director. This report covers the period 1 October 1965-15 July 1966, and was submitted for approval on July 29, 1966.

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Excellent programming support for the technique was supplied by Mr. Charles Pike and Mrs. Lydia Rufleth of United Aircraft Corporation's Research Laboratories.

The author thanks Mr. Keith W. Veigas of the Meteorological Analysis and Prediction Division for stimulating discussions held at various stages during the work on the LRMW analysis technique.

Messrs. Gordon B. Lassow and Marc Taillon of TRC provided valuable assistance in the data processing and tabulating for the derivation of the LRMW initialguess equations and the subsequent independent data tests. The National Meteorological Center supplied the upper-air data used for this study.

Line item number 40 of DD Form 1423

## ABSTRACT

An objective <u>layer</u> of maximum wind (LRMW) analysis technique is described and evaluated. The evaluation indicates that the technique represents a significant improvement over the previously developed <u>level</u> of maximum wind (LMW) analysis technique [Spiegler, D. B., and J. T. Ball, et al., 1965: <u>Techniques for objective</u> <u>hemispheric analysis and prediction of the jet stream</u>. Technical Report 7463-176 (ESD-TR-65-13), The Travelers Research Center, Inc.].

A categorization procedure for wind profiles that results in nine jet stream categories is designed and used for the derivation of regression equations that supply the initial-guess fields for each of five LRMW parameters. The stratification of the profiles into nine categories is a refinement of the previous seven categories developed for the LMW analysis technique. The initial-guess LRMW equations are stable in tests with independent data and are capable of specifying, very well, the general characteristics of the LRMW profile. They also provide realistic values for the LRMW parameters over no-data areas that are consistent with the entire analysis area.

The analysis technique locates jet cores between grid points and generates observations along these cores by using models of horizontal jet profiles.

Thickness of the LRMW as one of the analysis fields in conjunction with the windspeed maximum, mean height of the LRMW, and vector shears below and above the LRMW enable the generation of a three-dimensional picture of the wind field in the vicinity of the jet stream.

Over the data areas, where a comparison between objective and subjective analyses can be made, the objective LRMW analyses compare favorably with the subjective analyses.

#### REVIEW AND APPROVAL

Publication of this technical report does not constitute Air Force approval of the report's findings or conclusions. It is published only for the exchange and stimulation of ideas.

Longhte

Robert L. Houghten Lt. Colonel, USAF System Program Director



## TABLE OF CONTENTS

A REAL PROPERTY OF A REAL PROPERTY OF A REAL PROPERTY.

Section	Title	Page
Ι	INTRODUCTION	1
II	EXPERIMENTS FOR LAYER OF MAXIMUM WIND INITIAL- GUESS EQUATIONS, AND THE PROCEDURE FOR ANALYSIS	3
1.	Selection of LRMW Categories	3
2.	LRMW Screening Regression Experiments	5
3.	The LRMW Analysis Procedure	7
3.1	Wind direction for the LRMW, W <sub>d</sub> (LR)	7
3.2	Maximum wind speed within the LRMW, W sM	7
3.3	Thickness of the LRMW, h(LR)	10
3.4	Mean height of the LRMW, $\overline{Z}(LR)$	10
3.5	Vector shears below and above the LRMW, $\vec{s}_{b}$ and $\vec{s}_{a}$	11
III	RESULTS FROM LRMW EXPERIMENTS	12
4.	LRMW Initial-guess Equations-Test and Evaluation	12
4.1	Subtropical and Polar Jets with $h(LR) > 12,000$ ft	22
4.2	Estimated h(LR) Resulting in Placing Cases in Wrong Category	25
4.3	Category Modeling of Wind Profiles (Categories $4-7$ )	27
4.4	Verification of Different Types of Wind Profiles (Categories $4-7$ )	33
5.	LRMW Objective Analysis Technique-Test and Evaluation	48
5.1	ARMS-error-method Statistics	48
5.2	Objective (computer) versus Subjective (man) LRMW Analysis Comparison	51
5.3	Consistency between LRMW Parameters	62
IV	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	64
REFER	ENCES	65
APPEN	DIX. LRMW INITIAL-GUESS EQUATIONS	67
DD FO	RM 1473	73

## LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

-

Figure	Title	Page
1	Root-mean-square errors of LRMW parameters	16
2	Examples of wind profiles: Category 4, Single, moderate sub- tropical-polar jet	29
3	Examples of wind profiles: Category 5, Single, strong sub- tropical-polar jet	30
4	Examples of wind profiles: Category 6, multiple, moderate sub- tropical-polar jet	31
5	Examples of wind profiles: Category 7, multiple, strong sub- tropical—polar jet	32
6	LRMW profiles constructed from equations and observed data—Category 4	34
7	LRMW profiles constructed from equations and observed data—Category 5	37
8	LRMW profiles constructed from equations and observed data— Category 6 (boundaries of LRMW connected by solid vertical line to indicate thickness)	40
9	LRMW profiles constructed from equations and observed data— Category 7 (boundaries of LRMW connected by solid vertical line to indicate thickness)	44
10(a)	Objective maximum wind speed, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	52
10(b)	Subjective maximum wind speed, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	53
11(a)	Objective thickness of LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	54
11(b)	Subjective thickness of LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	55
12(a)	Objective mean height of LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	56
12(b)	Subjective mean height of LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	57
13(a)	Objective vector shear below the LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	58
13(b)	Subjective vector shear below the LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	59
14(a)	Objective vector shear above the LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	60
14(b)	Subjective vector shear above the LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963	61

## LIST OF TABLES

Contraction of the second second

Table	Title	Page
I	Jet-stream categories and their definitions	4
Π	Specifiers used in LRMW screening regression experiments	6
III	Number of cases placed in proper category using $h_e(LR)$ -Dependent data	9
IV	Selection of withheld stations on the basis of station density and wind speed maximum	10
V	Results of LRMW initial-guess equations on dependent and independent data	13
VI	Percentage of cases within specified error limits for LRMW parameters (Independent data)	22
VII	Number and percentage of cases where $h(LR) > 12,000$ ft for jet- stream categories 2, 3, 8, and 9 (Dependent data)	23
VIII	Results of testing subtropical- and polar-jet-stream equations on cases where $h(LR) > 12,000$ ft (Dependent data)	24
IX	Number of cases placed in proper category using $h_e(LR)$ -Independent data	25
Х	Errors resulting from assigning wrong categories—Independent data	26
XI	Level of maximum wind locations for categories 4 through 7	28
XII	Overall rms errors for LRMW parameters for 12 observation times	49
XIII	LRMW versus LMW comparison: Category A(W > 100 knots) initial-guess verification statistics	62

## SECTION I

#### INTRODUCTION

An objective hemispheric analysis technique for five level-of-maximum-wind (LMW) parameters was described and evaluated in a previous report [6]. The five LMW parameters are: the wind direction at the LMW, the wind speed at the LMW, the height of the LMW, and the scalar shears 10,000 ft above and below the LMW. The evaluation indicated that the analysis technique produces high quality analyses, particularly of the wind speed, but that there are a few areas of the hemisphere near jet streams where the height of the LMW and the vertical shears are not specified properly. These areas are usually associated with wind profiles that exhibit a thick layer of high wind speeds (i.e., cases where there is more than one distinct maximum, such as in areas where both the polar and subtropical jet are observed. Because the analysis technique requires a level of maximum wind, a particular level is selected somewhere in the thick layer, although the level selected is not meaningful for these cases. The analyses and verifications of the height and vertical shears are sensitive to where in the layer the LMW is specified. Because of this, it was concluded that the analysis technique should be refined to present a more realistic three-dimensional picture of the jet stream and its associated parameters. To accomplish this refinement, a layer of maximum wind (LRMW) was defined (similar to that discussed by Reiter [5]) and the analysis of six LRMW parameters was performed. These parameters are:

(a) the mean altitude of the LRMW (bounded by levels where the wind speed is 85% of the maximum speed in the layer),  $\bar{Z}$  (LR),

- (b) the thickness of the LRMW, h (LR),
- (c) the maximum wind speed in the LRMW,  $W_{sM}$
- (d) the mean wind direction in the LRMW,  $\overline{W}_{a}(LR)$ ,
- (e) the vertical vector shear below the LRMW,  $\boldsymbol{S}_{\!\!\boldsymbol{h}},$  and
- (f) the vertical vector shear above the LRMW,  $\overline{S_2}$ .

The mean altitude of the <u>layer</u> of maximum wind replaces the height of the <u>level</u> of maximum wind in the analysis technique. The thickness of the LRMW is a new field. <u>Vector</u> shears above and below the LRMW, instead of <u>scalar</u> shears above and below the LMW, complete the more realistic three-dimensional analysis. The LRMW analysis

technique is similar to that described for the LMW [6]; that is (a) initial-guess fields are supplied by using an established relationship between the LRMW parameters and the information available from constant-pressure-surface analyses of wind, temperature, and geopotential height, and (b) the initial-guess fields are adjusted using station values of the LRMW parameters (computed by a preprocessor program) and the successive approximation analysis technique (SAT) [1].

Section II describes the experiments performed and the analysis technique, and Section III discusses the results of the tests and the evaluation of the technique.

#### SECTION II

## EXPERIMENTS FOR LAYER OF MAXIMUM WIND INITIAL-GUESS EQUATIONS, AND THE PROCEDURE FOR ANALYSIS

## 1. Selection of LRMW Categories

In previous work on the objective analysis of the jet stream [6], seven jet-stream categories were defined based on wind speeds at 200 and 300 mb  $[W_s(2) \text{ and } W_s(3)]$ , latitude, and a combination of both wind speeds and latitude. These categories were: no jet, subtropical jet<sup>1</sup>, subtropical—polar jet<sup>1</sup>, and polar jet<sup>1</sup>.

The "subtropical—polar" jets are characterized by either a single maximum somewhere between 200 and 300 mb, or by multiple maxima (e.g., polar jet in the vicinity of 300 mb and subtropical jet in the vicinity of 200 mb). Thus, it was advantageous to further separate the two subtropical-polar categories into single- and multipletype wind maxima. The resulting nine categories and the associated criteria for each are listed in Table I.

Latitude, which had previously been included as one of the criteria, was omitted because it was noted that the jets to the north of strong mid- to high-latitude ridges, or blocking anticyclones, had characteristics of subtropical jets, even though located north of 45° (e.g., the height of the maximum wind speed was around 40,000 ft). Conversely, the polar jet was sometimes observed in the subtropics at a latitude below 30° (30°N and 45°N had previously been the limiting latitudes for polar and subtropical jets [6]).

Thickness of the LRMW<sup>2</sup>, h(LR), was included in the criteria for the subtropical polar jets for the reasons previously discussed. A 12,000-ft thickness was chosen as the separation limit between single and multiple maxima after considerable testing with 8,000- and 10,000-ft thicknesses.

Criteria established for the nine jet-stream categories should help to overcome the problem of accurately specifying the shears and mean height of the layer of maximum wind caused by a thick LRMW.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Two categories: "weak-moderate", and "strong".

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Thickness of the LRMW is defined by the height difference between the two levels, above and below the wind speed maximum, at which the wind speed is equal to 85% of the wind speed maximum.

JET-STREAM CATEGORIES AND THEIR DEFINITIONS TABLE I

			Dafinition		
Jet-stream category	Description	W <sub>s</sub> (3) W <sub>s</sub> (2) *	$W_{s}(2) - W_{s}(3)*$	$W_{S}(3) - W_{S}(2)^{*}$	$h(LR)^{\dagger}$
-	No jet	< 60 and < 60	1	I	I
2	Weak-moderate subtropical jet	> 100  or  > 100	> 15		
3	Strong subtropical jet	> 100  or  > 100	> 20	I	l
4	Single weak-moderate sub- tropical jet	60-100 or 60-100	≤ 15 and	≤ 15	<pre>&lt; 12000</pre>
2	Single strong subtropical- polar jet	> 100  or  > 100	≤ 20 and	≤ 20	≤ 12000
9	Multiple weak-moderate subtropical-polar jet	60-100 or 60-100	≤ 15 and	≤ 15	> 12000
7	Multiple strong subtropical	> 100  or  > 100	≤ 20 and	≤ 20	> 12000
Ø	Weak-moderate polar jet	60-100 or 60-100		> 15	-
6	Strong polar jet	> 100  or > 100	7	> 20	1

\* Measured in knots.† Measured in ft.

.

## 2. LRMW Screening Regression Experiments

The initial-guess fields to the LRMW analyses are provided by regression equations derived for the nine jet-stream categories described in Section 1.

To derive these regression equations, a three-month sample of winter upper-air data (Dec 1963, Jan and Feb 1964) received from the National Meteorological Center (NMC) was completely error checked and processed through three programs before the screening experiments were run. The first of these programs selects and computes LRMW parameters from rawinsonde and radiosonde station data. The second processor program computes a list of specifiers, which may be selected for use in the derived LRMW equations. The specifiers are:

(a) temperature, winds, and heights at mandatory constant-pressure surfaces from 700 to 100 mb;

(b) thickness, temperature differences, shears, and mean temperatures of layers bounded by mandatory constant-pressure surfaces;

(c) thicknesses between the mean height of the LRMW and the height of constant-pressure surfaces from 500 to 100 mb;

(d) wind shears between the maximum wind speed and the wind speed at mandatory constant-pressure surfaces; and

(e) an estimated thickness of the LRMW (computed from constantpressure-surface winds and heights; the details of the computation are in Section 3).

These specifiers are listed in Table II.

TABLE IISPECIFIERS USED IN LRMW SCREENING REGRESSION EXPERIMENTS\*

$$\begin{split} & Z(7), \ T(7), \ W_d(7), \ W_s(7) \\ & Z(5), \ T(5), \ W_d(5), \ W_s(5) \\ & Z(4), \ T(4), \ W_d(4), \ W_s(4) \\ & Z(3), \ T(3), \ W_d(3), \ W_s(3) \\ & Z(1), \ T(1), \ W_d(1), \ W_s(1) \\ & h(7-5), \ \Delta T(7-5), \ \Delta W_s(7-5), \ \Delta T/\Delta n(7-5) \\ & h(5-4), \ \Delta T(5-4), \ W_s(5-4), \ \Delta T/\Delta n(5-4) \\ & h(5-3), \ \Delta T(5-3), \ \Delta W_s(5-3), \ \Delta T/\Delta n(5-3) \\ & h(4-3), \ \Delta T(4-3), \ \Delta W_s(4-3), \ \Delta T/\Delta n(4-3) \\ & h(2-1), \ \Delta T(2-1), \ \Delta W_s(2-1), \ \Delta T/\Delta n(2-1) \\ & h(5-M), \ \ W_s(5-M), \ S_5 \\ & h(3-M), \ \ W_s(3-M), \ S_3 \\ & h(1-M), \ \ W_s(1-M), \ S_1 \\ & W_s(L) \\ & h(LR), \ h_e(LR), \ W_d(LR), \ \overline{Z}(LR), \ \overline{S}_b, \ \overline{S}_a, \ \overline{S}_{bM}, \ \overline{S}_{aM} \end{split}$$

\*Z = altitude;  $\overline{Z}$  = mean altitude; T = temperature;  $\Delta T$  = temperature difference;  $W_d$  = wind direction;  $W_s$  = wind speed;  $\Delta W_s$  = wind shear; h = thickness;  $h_e$  = estimated thickness;  $\Delta T/\Delta n$  = thermal wind;  $S_x = [W_s(x-M)]/[Z(x)-\overline{Z}(LR)]; \overline{S}_a$  and  $\overline{S}_b$  = vector shears above and below;  $\overline{S}_{aM}$  and  $\overline{S}_{bM}$  = maximum  $\overline{S}_a$  and  $\overline{S}_b$ ; parenthetic numbers refer to level in 100 mb. The third processor program separates the data into the nine categories discussed in the previous section.

3. The LRMW Analysis Procedure

The regression equations for the nine jet-stream categories provide the initial guesses (grid-point values) for the analyses of all LRMW fields except wind direction. The procedures for obtaining grid-point values for each of the LRMW parameters are as follows.

## 3.1 Wind direction for the LRMW, W<sub>d</sub>(LR)

(a) For subtropical-jet categories (2 and 3),

 $W_{d}(LR) = W_{d}(2)$ 

because height of the subtropical jet is generally near 200 mb.

(b) For polar-jet categories (8 and 9),

 $W_{d}(LR) = W_{d}(3)$ 

because height of the polar jet is generally near 300 mb.

(c) For subtropical—polar and no-jet categories (4-7 and 1),

$$W_{d}(LR) = \frac{W_{d}(3) + W_{d}(2)}{2}$$

because a subtropical-polar jet is generally located between 300 and 200 mb; for no-jet categories, "maxima" may be anywhere in the sounding, and the average of wind directions at 300 and 200 mb is a good approximation.

3.2 Maximum wind speed within the LRMW, W

The jet-stream category for each grid point is determined in order to generate initial guesses for the maximum wind field. This is not a straightforward procedure for categories 4 through 7, because thickness of the LRMW [h(LR)] is part of the category criteria and also an LRMW parameter to be analyzed, but is not available at this point. Categories 1, 2, 3, 8, and 9, on the other hand, are uniquely determined by 300and 200-mb wind speeds and their differences.

Category 4 is different from Category 6 only in the thickness criteria (similary for Categories 5 and 7). The solution to the problem is the computation of an estimated thickness of the LRMW [ $h_e(LR)$ ] to classify uniquely grid points for Categories 4 and 6 and Categories 5 and 7. The only information available (at all grid points) for the

computation is constant-pressure-surface data. The estimated thickness is computed as follows.

The level of maximum wind (LMW) is assumed to be at 36,000 ft for Categories 4, 5, 6, and 7 (as this was the mean height to the nearest thousand feet of the LMW for subtropical—polar jet categories {1840 cases} [6]). For a grid point that may be in either Category 4 or 6, based on the 300- and 200-mb wind criteria, the wind-speed maximum is computed for both categories and the <u>average</u> value is used as an aid in obtaining an estimated thickness. Eight-five percent of the <u>averaged</u> wind-speed maximum defines the boundaries of the layer of maximum wind. A simple interpolation between the heights of constant-pressure surfaces above and below the LMW and their associated wind speeds determines the heights at which the wind speed is 85% of the interpolated height of the lower boundary of the layer from the interpolated height of the upper boundary of the layer. The proper category for the grid point can then be determined with the estimated thickness. A similar procedure is employed for grid points that initially could be in Category 5 or 7.

The suitability of this method for properly categorizing a grid point was tested on the 3-month upper-air data sample. The number of cases placed in the proper category using the estimated thickness is given in Table III; the actual number of cases in a category was determined by using winds-aloft station data (dependent) to arrive at the true thickness [h(LR)].

The results in Table III indicate that the method of estimating the thickness of the LRMW works well.

With all grid points now uniquely defined by category, the initial guess of  $W_{sM}$  is generated by the appropriate regression equations. The initial guess is "corrected" by using the processed station observations and the successive approximation, analysis (SAT) technique [1].

After a specified number of passes through the data, the jet cores are located (first at grid points, and then between grid points through a parabola fitting routine). "Observations" are generated along core segments by using Endlich and McLean's jet-stream model [2], which relates the wind speed at the core to the wind speed at some specified perpendicular distance from the core. This model was first derived from

e.

aircraft flights in the southeastern U.S. and results were recently corroborated by similar flights into jet streams in the central U.S. [3].

Jet-stream category*	No. of cases h <sub>e</sub> (LR) computation	No. of cases, h(LR) computation	% correct
4	798	935	85.3
5	231	267	86.5
6	534	779	75.5
7	368	468	78.6
Total	1931	2449	78.8

## TABLE III NUMBER OF CASES PLACED IN PROPER CATEGORY USING h\_(LR)-DEPENDENT DATA

## \*See Table I for definitions.

An additional pass is then made using both the generated data and the actual station data, and a relatively small influence radius. The generated wind-speed "observations" may be assigned a weight relative to the actual data for this pass.

# Verification of W

The areal-mean rms (ARMS) error method is used for verification purposes [7]. Although it was described in the previous report [6] (and elsewhere), it is described here because verification is considered one of the important aspects of the analysis evaluation. The ARMS error method approximates an area integral of the error over the analysis area by withholding some percentage of the observations and verifying them against the withheld- and analysis-station observations, which are equally weighted. The withheld-station observations approximate the maximum error points in the analysis field, but the number of withheld stations required by the ARMS error method usually does not equal the number of maximum error points. Therefore, the withheld stations were selected to represent equally the entire spectrum of maximum errors over the analysis area. The assumption is that the maximum error is inversely proportional to the density of the data.

The "density" of each station is computed prior to the analysis (see [7] for details of the density computation), and withheld stations are selected on the basis of three maximum-wind-speed and three station-density categories as outlined in Table IV.

#### TABLE IV

SELECTION OF WITHHELD STATIONS ON THE BASIS OF STATION DENSITY AND WIND SPEED MAXIMUM

		No. of withheld stations	
Density (ρ)	$[W_{sM} > 100 \text{ knots}]$	$\begin{bmatrix} B \\ W_{sM} = 60 - 100 \text{ knots} \end{bmatrix}$	$[W_{sM} < 60 \text{ knots}]$
Low (0.11-0.32)	3	4	3
Medium (0.33—0.43)	4	3	3
High (≥0.44)	3	3	4

## 3.3 Thickness of the LRMW, h(LR)

This field is analyzed at all grid points except those in Category 1. The initial guess for h(LR) is generated by regression equations after determining the jet-stream category for each grid point. The range of thickness for Category-1 data is too large to produce meaningful values. The SAT technique is then used with the station data for h(LR) to adjust the initial-guess field. No station is selected for corrections to grid points where  $W_{sM} < 60$  knots at the station.

## Verification of h(LR)

Thickness of the LRMW is verified using the ARMS error method and the identical set of withheld stations used in the verification of  $W_{sM}$  with the exception of verification Category C [ $W_{sM}$  <60 knots].

## 3.4 Mean height of the LRMW, $\overline{Z}(LR)$

The procedure for generating the initial-guess field to the analysis, the "correction" to grid points, and the verification is identical to that for the thickness of the LRMW.

## 3.5 Vector shears below and above the LRMW, $\vec{s}_{h}$ and $\vec{s}_{a}$

The vector shears below and above the LRMW are analyzed separately, with the analysis for the shear below performed first.

The initial guesses, the analysis, and the verifications are the same as those for the maximum wind speed in the LRMW (i.e., analysis and verifications at all grid points).

On the shear-below and shear-above printout charts, station locations where maximum vector shears (anywhere in the wind profile) exceed 10 knots per thousand feet are indicated by code letters. The code letters correspond to a list of stations that is printed with the corresponding maximum shear values and the levels at which the maximum shear is observed.

#### SECTION III

## RESULTS FROM LRMW EXPERIMENTS

The quality of the LRMW analysis technique was determined from: (a) testing the equations that provide the initial guesses to the analyses with independent station data, and (b) evaluating a series of objective analyses using both the ARMS error method and comparisons with subjective analyses of LRMW parameters. The test and evaluation of these items is described in the following two sections.

#### 4. LRMW Initial-guess Equations-Test and Evaluation

The list of possible specifiers for the LRMW parameters includes those specifiers directly available on a routine basis from data tapes (e.g., winds and temperatures at constant-pressure surfaces), those that are computed from constant-pressure-surface wind and height data (e.g., thermal winds, thicknesses), and those that contain one or two LRMW parameters<sup>3</sup>, either alone or as some arithmetic expression with constant-pressure-surface data (e.g., wind speed maximum, or shear between the wind at the LMW and at a constant-pressure surface).

Several screening regression experiments were performed for each specificand in each category. The primary objective in designing several experiments was to determine what combination of possible specifiers would yield the best results (some experiments used only directly available parameters as possible specifiers; others used only computed parameters; and still others used various combinations of directlyavailable and computed parameters as possible specifiers).

Table V lists the specificands, selected specifiers and their associated per cent reduction of variance (% red.), number of cases, rms errors, and standard deviations for each jet category for both dependent and independent data. Figure 1 illustrates the dependent and independent rms errors for each LRMW pararmeter. A study of the table reveals that:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>These specifiers assume (for a particular LRMW parameter) that the analysis of the parameters proceeds in a particular sequential order (which it does—sec Section 3). Thus, the wind speed may be a possible specifier for all other LRMW parameters because it is analyzed first.

TABLE V RESULTS OF LRMW INITIAL-GUESS EQUATIONS ON DEPENDENT AND INDEPENDENT DATA

3.25 kt 10<sup>-3</sup> ft<sup>-1</sup> 1.97 kt 10<sup>-3</sup> ft<sup>-1</sup> 2.41 kt 10<sup>-3</sup> ft<sup>-1</sup> 2.67 kt 10<sup>-3</sup> ft<sup>-1</sup> 2.66 kt 10<sup>-3</sup> ft<sup>-1</sup> 2.88 kt 10<sup>-3</sup> ft<sup>-1</sup> Units knots knots knots £ £ ÷ 2950 1830 4375 13.3 14.424.13994 Ind. Std. dev. Dep. 2.03 2.50 2.60 3.02 3.26 2.09 408913.9 2270 14.2 3013 21.5 3960 1.79 2.47 3579 2372 Ind. 2781 1601 1.76 2.19 2.09 2.38 Rms error 7.7 6.3 9.1 2.22 Dep. 2.61 3287 2335 1872 2914 1.85 1.95 2.18 1.74 8°.5 8.5 8.9 Specificand mean 3.27 -3.34 -4.15-6.35 4.515.91 9599 Ind. 88.0 8699 50.9 40146 132.6 38907 -6.10 4.53-4.03 6.03 Dep. 49.5 -2.959826 3.28 40764133.9 39729 9368 87.3 No. of cases Ind. 533 20620653.3 533 206 206 206 50 52 97 26 67 Dep. 3316 3316 3316 954 758 954 954 954 954 758 785 758 758 Total red. 200 62.422.9 21.7 64.8 35.439.9 39.4 29.3 83.0 45.8 32.0 46.2 36.1 Selected specifiers & % red.  $W_{_{\rm S}}(1),$   $W_{_{\rm S}}(3),$  T(5), h(LR),  $W_{_{\rm S}}(2),$   $W_{_{\rm S}}{\rm M}$ 5.3  $[\Delta T/\Delta n](2-1), W_{S}(3-M), h(LR), T(5)$ 3.0 1.1  $W_{S}(3-M), Z(LR), W_{S}(5), h(LR)$ 2.4  $h(LR), W_{S}(5-M), W_{S}(3)$  $W_{S}(5-M), W_{S}(2-M), W_{S}(3-M)$ 6.6 1.6 1.0 11.1 8.1 3.2  $W_{S}(1-M), W_{S}(2-M), T(1)$ 1,4 3.2  $W_{S}(2), W_{S}(3), W_{S}(1)$ 45.4 12.1 4.9 5.1  $v_{sM}^{v}, w_{s}(1), \overline{Z}(LR)$ 2.8  $W_{SM}, W_{S}(1), \overline{Z}(LR)$ 15.1 5.3 5.0 7.4 4.5 5.8  $W_{_{\rm S}}(2), W_{_{\rm S}}(1)$ 14.4 15.9 2.1 h<sub>e</sub>, h(3-2) 3.9 2,3 h<sub>e</sub>, T(2) 40.2 5.6 W<sub>s</sub>(2) 17.3S3, 37.9 14.5 33.1 26.6 17.3 62.7 11.1 83.0 6.8  $\geq$ Specificand  $\overline{Z}(LR)$  $\overline{Z}(LR)$ WsM  $W_{sM}$ h(LR) h(LR) WsM 100 100 <sup>cd</sup> 100 100 100<sup>00</sup> 100 Category 0 co -

TABLE V (Continued)

Cotoromy	Snooificand	Selected smeetfers & Tred	Total <sup>Q</sup>	No. of	eases	Specifica	nd mean	Rms e	rror	Std.	dev.	Inits
Carceoury	phonetecan		red.	Dep.	Ind.	Dep.	Ind.	Dep.	Ind.	Dep.	Ind.	
	W <sub>sM</sub>		65.8	935	196	89.7	89.7	ຕ <b>ໍ</b> ດ	9.5	15.9	14.7	knots
	h(LR)	W <sub>S</sub> (2-M), W <sub>S</sub> (3), W <sub>S</sub> (2) 29.1 5.1 1.3	35,5	935	196	7364	7389	2204	2383	2744	2784	ft
4	$\overline{Z}(LR)$	T(5), $W_{S}(1)$ , $W_{S}(3)$ , $W_{S}(2)$ , $W_{S}(5)$ 19.3 6.8 4.5 7.8 1.6	40,0	935	196	35359	36526	4270	5089	5516	6094	ft
	†v2 <sup>Ω</sup>	ΔW(5-3), Z(LR), W <sub>s</sub> (M), W <sub>s</sub> (5) 16.1 5.7 5.8 7.0	34.6	935	196	3.79	3,52	2.10	2.05	2,60	2.39	tt 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>
	†∽ <sup>α</sup>	S <sub>1</sub> , W <sub>s</sub> (1-M), W <sub>s</sub> (3-M) 22.6 3.2 1.7	27.5	935	196	-3,96	-4.19	2.34	2.42	2.75	2.78	tt 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>
	W <sub>sM</sub>	W <sub>S</sub> (3), W <sub>S</sub> (2) 53.6 5.3	59.0	267	67	132,3	126.8	13,0	11,3	20.3	18.0	knots
	h(LR)	h <sub>e</sub> , W <sub>s</sub> (2-M) 39.6 2.4	42.0	267	49	8083	7907	2061	2730	2706	3459	ft
ŝ	$\overline{Z}(LR)$	h(5-3), $\Delta W(3-2)$ , h(LR), $[\Delta T/\Delta n](2-1)$ 23.6 10.3 5.0 4.5	43.4	267	49	36382	35572	3167	3851	4211	4983	ft
	°sa†	S <sub>5</sub> , W <sub>s</sub> (2-M) 32.7 2.2	34.9	267	49	5.00	5.52	2.54	2.92	3.15	3.64	tt 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>
	†w <sup>rd</sup>	S <sub>1</sub> , T(2), W <sub>S</sub> (3-M) 28.4 4.3 1.8	34.5	267	49	-5.75	-5.78	3.05	2.51	3.77	3.28	$t \ 10^{-3} \ ft^{-1}$
	WsM	W <sub>S</sub> (2), W <sub>S</sub> (3), W <sub>S</sub> (1) 77.5 6.0 1.5	85.0	677	192	82.6	84.9	4.8	6.0	12.5	12.6	knots
	h(LR)	$h_{e}, \Delta W(7-5), W_{S}(1-M)$ 14.6 1.0 0.9	16.5	779	192	16904	17117	3025	3111	3311	3520	ft
9	$\overline{Z}(LR)$	W <sub>S</sub> (5), W <sub>S</sub> (1), T(5), W <sub>S</sub> (3), W <sub>S</sub> (2) 16.6 16.5 13.8 2.8 10.6	60.3	677	192	35424	37523	2890	3711	4583	5341	ţţ
	†va <sup>Ω</sup>	$S_5$ , h(LR), $\overline{Z}(LR)$ , $W_S(7)$ , T(3)	33,9	627	192	3,63	3,39	1.81	1.77	2.22	2.17 k	t 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>
	¢δ β	23.9 3.1 2.9 2.3 1.7 S1 24.6	24.6	627	192	-3,30	-3,30	1,85	2.78	2.13	2.19 k	t 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>

q

TABLE V (Continued)

cificand	Selected specifiers & % red.	Total %	No. of	cases	Specifica	and mean	Rms e	rror	Std.	dev.	Units
		red.	Dep.	Ind.	Dep.	Ind.	Dep.	Ind.	Dep.	Ind.	
	W <sub>s</sub> (2), W <sub>s</sub> (3) 85.6 5.6	91.2	468	95	131,8	130.7	6,1	5. 3	20.5	24.4	knots
	$ \begin{array}{c} h_{e},  W_{s}(5),  \Delta W(2{-}1),  h(3{-}2) \\ 33.4  2.1  1.5  1.9 \end{array} $	38,9	468	95	17021	16982	2479	3 05 7	3171	3353	ft
	$\Delta W(3-2), h(7-5), W_{S}(1), W_{S}(5), h(LR), W_{S}(2-M)$ 31.6 9.8 5.5 4.5 3.4 8.0	62.8	468	95	36600	35601	1645	2637	22695	3466	ît
	$\Delta W(5-3), \ \overline{Z}(LR)$ 43.7 6.3	50.0	468	95	5.59	53,6	1.81	2.28	2.51	2.98	tt 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>
	$S_1, W_s(1-M), W_s(5)$ 35.4 1.7 1.0	38.1	468	95	-5,04	-5,19	2.14	2.45	2.72	2.92]	ct 10-3 ft-1
	W <sub>S</sub> (3) 68.7	68.7	813	108	85.7	86,1	6.7	10.6	14.1	14.5	knots
	h <sub>e</sub> , W <sub>s</sub> (5) 34.2 3.2	37.4	813	108	8202	8138	3005	3485	3800	4262	ţ
	T(5), W <sub>S</sub> (5-M), W <sub>S</sub> (1-M), T(2) 22.7 14.9 4.3 1.5	42.4	813	108	29313	30427	2469	3021	3254	3826	ft
	$S_5, h(LR)$ 27.7 6.0	33.7	813	108	4,64	5,23	2.07	2.49	2.54	2.89	t 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>
		27.7	813	108	-4,95	-5.07	2.33	2,59	2.74	3.12	ct 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>
	W <sub>s</sub> (3) 79.4	79.4	315	28	127.1	132.8	0.6	11.6	19,8	22.5	knots
	h <sub>e</sub> , ΔW(3-2), h(5-3) 32.9 2.1 1.5	36.5	315	28	8335	9410	2803	2410	3519	4155	ft
-	T(5) $W_{S}(5) W_{S}(2)$ 26.9 6.5 9.6	43.0	315	28	29933	30027	1831	1305	2426	2725	ft
	$S_5$ , h(LR) 45.4 7.1	52.5	315	28	6.48	6.70	2,19	2.19	3.18	3,30	t 10-3 ft-1
	W <sub>S</sub> (2-M), S <sub>1</sub> , W <sub>S</sub> (1-M) 44.4 5.3 2.2	51.9	315	28	-6,25	-4.86	2,61	2.00	3.76	2.56	ct 10 <sup>-3</sup> ft <sup>-1</sup>

A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERTY.



Fig. 1. Root-mean-square errors of LRMW parameters.



Fig. 1. Continued.



Fig. 1. Continued.







Fig. 1. Continued.

(a) The equations are stable with independent data because independent rms errors are frequently near the rms dependent errors; where the independent errors are higher (or lower) than the dependent errors, the standard deviation of the independent sample is also higher (or lower), except for  $\vec{S}_{o}$ , Category 6.

(b) In general, the specifiers selected by the screening program<sup>\*</sup> are those that one might expect to be selected from synoptic experience with vertical wind profiles, i.e., (1) the specifiers selected for the maximum wind speed for all categories are one or more of the directly available constant-pressure-surface winds at 300, 200, and 100 mb. Considerable skill is demonstrated in specifying the maximum wind, as evidenced by the large % red.in both the independent and dependent samples;
(2) for thickness of the LRMW, the estimated thickness is one of the selected specifiers for seven of eight LRMW categories (thickness not specified for no jet, Category 1);
(3) for vector wind shears below and above the LRMW, the computed wind shears between constant-pressure surfaces are invariably among the selected specifiers;
(4) the mean height of the LRMW is best specified by a combination of wind and temperature information at 500, 200, and 100 mb for most of the LRMW categories.

(c) There is a significant difference in the mean thicknesses of the LRMW for the single- and multiple-maxima subtropical-polar jet categories, i.e., the mean thicknesses are not just below and above the limiting value of 12,000 ft given by the definitions; the mean thicknesses for the multiple jet categories (6 and 7) are above twice that for the single jet

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>The cut-off criteria for selection is a combination of the modified F-test described by Miller [4] and practical considerations involving the optimum number of specifiers to use on an operational basis (e.g., a specifier may have been computed to be significant by the modified F-test, but may not have been included with those listed in Table V if the % red. and the lowering of the dependent rms error was considered to be small enough to make little difference in specification accuracy, considering the increased storage and computer time required for its use).

categories (4 and 5). Thus, the stratification into single and multiple jet categories is justified by the data and is a desirable revision of the subtropical-polar jet categories defined in the earlier report [6], where thickness was not a criterion.

Table VI shows the percentage of cases within specified error limits for the independent-data test of the LRMW equations. The error limits in the table were sclected as representing a range of errors that is quite low considering that the LRMW equations were derived to provide initial-guess fields to analyses of LRMW parameters. It can be seen from the table that a very high percentage of the specification errors fall within these limits.

## 4.1 Subtropical and Polar Jets with h (LR) > 12,000 ft

It was recognized that the thickness of the layer of maximum wind could exceed 12,000 ft for a wind profile that clearly indicated either a subtropical jet or a polar jet.

			Er	ror Limits		
Jet-stream	Total number of	W <sub>sM</sub>	h(LR)	Z(LR)	s b	Sa
category	cases	± 10 knots	$\pm$ 4000 ft	$\pm$ 4000 ft	± 2 knots	$10^{-3} \text{ ft}^{-1}$
1	533	81.3	_	_	77.8	76.0
2	206	88.8	79.1	89.3	79.6	72.8
3	97	94.9	87.6	99.0	80.3	65.9
4	196	74.0	90.3	73.5	74.0	66.9
5	49	61.2	87.8	81.6	61.2	51.0
6	192	93.7	78.6	79.1	75.5	62.1
7	95	96.8	85.3	92.6	70.5	77.9
8	108	81.5	79.6	91.6	63.9	63.0
9	28	85.7	96.4	100.0	53.5	67.9

TABLE VI PERCENTAGE OF CASES WITHIN SPECIFIED ERROR LIMITS FOR LRMW PARAMETERS (Independent data)

To determine the frequency of occurrence of these events, the dependent data sample for Categories 2 and 3 (subtropical) and Categories 8 and 9 (polar) were separated into cases where  $h(LR) \leq 12,000$  ft and cases where h(LR) > 12,000 ft. Table VII shows the breakdown of cases.

		TABLE VII	
NUMBER	AND	PERCENTAGE OF CASES WHERE h(LR) > 1	12,000 ft
	FOR	JET-STREAM CATEGORIES 2, 3, 8, AND 9	
		(Dependent data)	

Jet-stream	No. of	cases	Total no.	% cases
category*	$h(LR) \le 12,000 \text{ ft}$	h(LR) > 12,000 ft	of cases	h(LR) > 12,000  ft
2	741	213	954	22.3
3	541	217	758	28.6
8	687	126	813	15.5
9	272	43	315	13.7

\*See Table I for definitions.

It is readily apparent that thicknesses greater than 12,000 ft occur relatively infrequently for these categories. To determine if the equations derived for the entire category would perform satisfactorily on the subset of data given by the cases where h(LR) > 12,000 ft, the equations were tested with the subset. The statistics appear in Table VIII.

An examination of Table VIII and a comparison of it with Table V indicates that the rms errors are very close to or lower than the errors for all cases in the category for all LRMW parameters except the thickness of the LRMW. It is not surprising that the thickness is not specified well for these cases, because the mean thicknesses are about 5000 to nearly 7000 ft higher than the mean for the total number of cases in the categories.

Considering the stability of the equations on the subset of data for four of the five LRMW parameters, the relatively infrequent occurrence of thickness > 12,000 ft for the polar and subtropical jet categories, and the resultant small data sample available from one entire winter's data, it was concluded that separate equations were not warranted for these cases.

TABLE VIII			
RESULTS OF TESTING SUBTROPICAL- AND POLAR-			
JET-STREAM EQUATIONS ON CASES WHERE h(LR) > 12,000 ft			
(Dependent data)			

Jet-stream category	Specificand	No. of cases*	Mean	Rms error	Units
	W <sub>sM</sub>		84.7	5.8	knots
	h(LR)		15133	4349	ft
2	$\overline{Z}(LR)$	212	41727	2174	ft
	<del>S</del> b		3.96	1.62	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
	s a		-3.82	1.92	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
	WsM		135.8	5.7	knots
	h(LR)		14723	3390	ft
3	$\overline{Z}(LR)$	216	40308	1554	ft
	S <sub>b</sub>		5.24	1.77	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
	, Sa		-5.88	2.03	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
	W <sub>sM</sub>		84.2	5.7	knots
	h(LR)		14795	5150	ft
8	$\overline{Z}(LR)$	126	28744	2885	ft
	S <sub>b</sub>		4.73	2.43	knot $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
	s <sub>a</sub>		-4.25	2.42	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
9	W <sub>sM</sub>		121.5	6.6	knots
	h(LR)		14785	5 <b>2</b> 47	ft
	$\overline{Z}(LR)$	43	30976	2758	ft
	S <sub>b</sub>		6.66	2.28	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
	Sa		-5.45	2.08	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>

\*Where the number of cases differs from that given in Table VII, a case was eliminated due to data error.

## 4.2 Estimated h(LR) Resulting in Placing Cases in Wrong Category

For jet-stream Categories 4 through 7, part of the category definition is given by the thickness of the LRMW. For reasons discussed in Section 3, it is necessary to compute an estimated thickness of the LRMW. Table III lists the number of cases placed in the proper category using  $h_e(LR)$ , where the total number of cases in a category was determined by using winds-aloft station data (dependent) to arrive at the real thickness. About 79% of the cases were in the proper category for the four jetstream categories. A similar determination was made for the station data from the independent sample (see Table IX). Then, the equation for the categories into which

	TABLE IX	
NUMBER OF	CASES PLACED IN PROPER CATEGORY	USING
	h <sub>o</sub> (LR)-INDEPENDENT DATA	

Jet-stream category	No. of cases, $h_e(LR)$ computation	No. of cases, h(LR) computation	% correct
4	163*	196	83.2
5	39†	49	79.6
6	160‡	193	82.9
7	85¶	95	89.5
Total	447	533	83.9

\*33 cases fell into Category 6.

†10 cases fell into Category 7.

‡33 cases fell into Category 4.

¶10 cases fell into Category 5.

cases were misplaced [using  $h_e(LR)$ ] were used with the data from the categories into which the cases should have been placed [according to the use of h(LR)] to determine how well the equations would perform for these misplaced cases. The results are given in Table X.

It can be seen that applying the LRMW equations to the cases where erroneous categories are assigned leads to large errors in the estimation of  $\overline{Z}(LR)$ . However, the

TABLE X				
ERRORS RESULTING FROM ASSIGNI	NG			
WRONG CATEGORIES-INDEPENDENT	DATA			

Jet-stream category		No. o			Rms	
Equation	Data	Specificand	cases	Mean	error	Units
6		W <sub>sM</sub>		83.3	3.3	knots
		h(LR)	33	9012	9583	ft
	4	$\overline{Z}(LR)$		35848	6208	ft
		s <sub>b</sub>		3.43	2.42	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
		s <sub>a</sub>		-3.06	3.14	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
		W <sub>sM</sub>		114.9	3.0	knots
	5	h(LR)	10	8669	8724	ft
7		$\overline{Z}(LR)$		35571	4370	ft
		s <sub>b</sub>		2.99	1.91	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
		s <sub>a</sub>		-4.20	1.87	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
4	6	W sM		85.7	6.1	knots
		h(LR)	33	15309	8097	ft
		$\overline{Z}(LR)$		37871	4211	ft
		S <sub>b</sub>		3.78	1.99	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
		Sa		-3.92	2.38	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
5	7	w <sub>sM</sub>		126.1	8.2	knots
		h(LR)		14809	6849	ft
		$\overline{Z}(LR)$	10	37080	43 <b>26</b>	ft
		s <sub>b</sub>		5.12	2.35	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>
		, Sa a		-5.64	1.38	knots $10^{-3}$ ft <sup>-1</sup>

other LRMW parameter specifications are reasonably good. These results are not difficult to interpret. As given by the definitions of the categories and the means of the LRMW parameters, the major difference between Category 4 and Category 6 is the thickness of the LRMW, and similarly for Category 5 and Category 7. Other differences in LRMW parameters for these categories are not readily detectable. Thus, when the mean thickness of the LRMW is about 8,000 ft and a thickness-specification equation from a category where the mean thickness is about 16,000 ft is used, a large specification error is likely.

As noted in Section 3, computation of an estimated thickness of the LRMW must use constant-pressure-surface information. The large number of cases in each of Categories 4 through 7 warrants the use of separate LRMW equations for each of these categories. The small percentage of times (< 20%) that erroneous categories are assigned should not seriously affect the initial guess for four of the five LRMW analyses, but will affect the initial-guess field for thickness of the LRMW over 10 to 25% of the grid points where the 300- or 200-mb wind speed is  $\geq$  60 knots. However, the analysis will reduce considerably the number of grid points affected, because the station data will adjust the grid-point values.

## 4.3 Category Modeling of Wind Profiles (Categories 4-7)

It is well known that an almost infinite variety of vertical wind profiles is possible. A categorization of wind profiles for the purpose of an objective hemispheric analysis technique for LRMW parameters is, of necessity, based on constant-pressuresurface data which limits the sophistication of the categorization procedure. Our attempt to achieve modeling sophistication was made by introducing thickness of the LRMW as one of the criteria for defining the profiles that were other than "pure" subtropical or polar jets.

The logic for using 300- to 200-mb wind-speed differences as another part of the category criteria is straightforward. If there is a relatively small difference, either the maximum wind is between 300 and 200 mb or there are maxima near both of these levels. The thickness of the LRMW criteria is designed to separate these either/or cases; i.e., if the thickness is  $\leq$  12,000 ft, the maxima should be between 300 and 200 mb, and if it is  $\geq$  12,000 ft, there may be maxima near 300 and 200 mb
with a minimum in between or, if the maximum is between 300 and 200 mb, it must be a broad maximum (blunt nose jet) by definition.

Where there is a relatively large difference between the 300 and 200 mb wind speeds (Categories 2, 3, 8 and 9), the maximum wind is probably near the eonstant-pressure surface having the higher of the wind speeds.

To determine how closely the wind profiles from Categories 4 through 7 followed the logic of the eriteria established for them, twenty-five profiles were plotted from station data of winds aloft and eonstant-pressure-surface winds.

Table XI lists the number of profiles that fell within the eriteria limits described above for each of Categories 4 through 7.

Jet- strcam eategory		No. c	Minimum between			
	Below 300 mb	At 300 mb	Between 300 and 200 mb	At 200 mb	Above 200 mb	300 and 200 mb (between 2 maxima)
4	2	_	16	2	5	
5		2	17		6	
6	3		12	2	8	5
7	1	3	12	5	4	3

TABLE XI LEVEL OF MAXIMUM WIND LOCATIONS FOR CATEGORIES 4 THROUGH 7

For the single jets, 65% of the (25) profiles contain maximum winds between 300 and 200 mb. There are cases where the difference between the 300 and 200 mb wind speeds is not large enough to place the profiles in the subtropical- or polar-jet cate-gories, but where the speed increases above 200 mb or below 300 mb to result in the maximum being located outside the 300- to 200-mb layer.

For the multiple jets, just under 50% of the profiles contain maxima between 300 and 200 mb, and about 40% contain maxima at or above 200 mb. Sixteen percent of the cases exhibit a minimum between 200 and 300 mb. These cases are in the statistics twice, with <u>maxima</u> at or near 200 or 300 mb. Figures 2 through 5 show examples of profiles for each category and maximum wind-speed classification.



Fig. 2. Examples of wind profiles: Category 4, Single, moderate subtropical-polar jet.











Fig. 5. Examples of wind profiles: Category 7, multiple, strong subtropical-polar jet.

In general, the wind profiles follow the logic for the category criteria, but, as noted, there are instances where a profile for a particular LRMW category deviates from the "model" conceived for that category.

The major point being made in this discussion of category modeling of wind profiles is that the wind profiles cannot be adequately stratified to include <u>all</u> types of profiles, at least when using only the constant-pressure-surface information (as required by the nature of the objective LRMW analysis technique). This is not considered serious, because the category equations supply only the initial-guess field for the LRMW parameters, and the initial guess is "corrected" over the data areas by the analysis procedure.

It is concluded that the LRMW categories defined here represent the near optimum stratification of wind profiles, considering that the definitions must be based on constant-pressure-surface information.

#### 4.4 Verification of Different Types of Wind Profiles (Categories 4–7)

The wind profiles in Figs. 2 through 5 were chosen to illustrate some of the variety of wind profiles that are possible within particular categories. Subsequent to their selection it was decided to look for the individual verifications to determine whether the equations were capable of "capturing" some of the differences in the wind profiles. For each of the profiles in Figs. 2 through 5, it is possible to draw portions of the wind profiles from the information specified by the LRMW equations. Figures 6 through 9 represent the actual observed profiles and portions of the profiles constructed from the values given by the equations for the LRMW parameters. On these figures the maximum wind speed in the LRMW is plotted at the level of the mean height of the LRMW, but it does not necessarily follow that the maximum speed is actually at that level—it may be anywhere in the layer. A study of the figures and specification errors reveals that the specification of LRMW parameters as given by the equations is, in general, very good. Discussing the results by individual categories:

#### Category 4: single, moderate subtropical-polar jet

The equations are seen to be capable of specifying the mean height of the LRMW  $[\overline{Z}(LR)]$  above 200 mb, below 300 mb, and inbetween 300 and 200 mb. For these single jets, it may be assumed, in most cases, that the maximum is located very near  $\overline{Z}(LR)$ 







And the second second



Fig. 6. Continued.







÷



Fig. 7. Continued.







X PA

Fig. 8. Continued.



Fig. 8. Continued.



Fig. 8. Continued.

and the second second second second









Fig. 9. Continued.

except where other information makes this unlikely [e.g., Station 78 089 has a wind speed of 86 knots at the 200-mb level, which is within 1000 ft of  $\overline{Z}(LR)$ ; thus, it is nearly impossible for the maximum of 107 knots to be at the specified  $\overline{Z}(LR)$  of 40557 ft. With the information of the boundaries of the LRMW given by the thickness in conjunction with the known 200-mb wind speed, it is very likely that the maximum wind speed is located between 200 mb and the upper boundary. This approximates the actual profile very well]. For Station 47 582,  $\overline{Z}(LR)$  is specified to be at a level lower than 300 mb, but the available 500-mb wind speed (which is higher than the maximum speed specified by the equations, and 16 knots greater than the 300-mb speed) strongly suggests that the maximum is closer to 500 mb than 300 mb, and that  $\overline{Z}(LR)$  is probably specified somewhat high. There is no information to indicate that the shears are in error; thus, the profile constructed from the LRMW equations can be subjectively displaced to a lower elevation somewhere between 500 and 300 mb to give a better approximation of the true profile. Station 72 655 exhibits a close relationship between the obscrved profile and that specified by the LRMW equations.

# Category 5: single, strong subtropical-polar jet

The profiles obtained from the LRMW information approximate rather closely the observed profiles, despite the observed range of the mean height of the LRMW from 29551 to 41213 ft. Although the maximum wind speed for Station 72 311 was not specified to be as high as observed, most of the sharpness of the profile was indicated by the strong vertical shears and the relatively thin layer of maximum wind given by the LRMW equations.

#### Category 6: multiple, moderate subtropical-polar jet

In this category the vector shears above and below the LRMW, as well as the other LRMW parameters, are specified quite well (see Fig. 8). The maximum will frequently not differ by an appreciable amount from the 300- and 200-mb wind speeds; i.e., the definition of the category precludes a sharpness to the profile. The details within the thick LRMW, of course, are not specified.

## Category 7: multiple, strong subtropical-polar jet

The comments made for Category 6 apply here. LRMW parameters are specified very well.

The major outcome of the verification results for these assorted profiles is an increase in confidence in the ability of the LRMW equations to closely approximate the observed values of the LRMW parameters despite the incongruity of profile types within a category.

#### 5. LRMW Objective Analysis Technique-Test and Evaluation

The analysis procedure described in Section II was used with data from 12 observation times in January 1963 (a time period not within the three month sample used to derive the initial-guess equations). The LRMW analyses for the 12 observation times were verified using the ARMS error method. The evaluation consisted of (a) an interpretation of the verification statistics and comparison with verification statistics from LMW analyses described in the previous report, (b) a comparison of the computer analyses with hand-analyzed charts, and (c) a determination of the consistency between LRMW analyses for each observation time.

#### 5.1 ARMS -error-method Statistics

Table XII presents the overall rms errors (both initial guess and final pass) for five LRMW parameters for twelve observation times during January 1963.

Four of the five LRMW parameter verification statistics are not directly comparable to the LMW parameter verification statistics because three of them are defined differently (as discussed in Section I) and thickness of the LRMW is a new parameter. The only direct comparison with the LMW verification statistics that can be made is for the wind speed maximum.

Because the analysis procedures for both the LRMW and the LMW are identical for the wind speed maximum after the initial-guess field has been generated, the comparison was made with the statistics obtained from the initial-guess fields (the January 1963 data was used as input to both). Table XIII lists the analysis and withheld station rms errors for the initial guess of  $W_{sM}$  for verification Category A ( $W_{sM} > 100$  knots) for each of the 12 observation times. It is seen that the LRMW

		Error (initial guess/final pass)			
Parameter	Verification category	Total rms error	Analysis rms error*	Withheld rms error†	
W <sub>sM</sub>	А	$16.4\\13.4$	16.5 4.8	16.4 18.4	
	В	12.4 10.2	$\frac{11.5}{3.0}$	13.214.1	
	С	10.0 7.2	9.7 2.0	10.4 10.0	
h(LR)	А	6021 4523	5440 766	6552 6351	
	В	6126 4146	5499 1225	6695 5734	
Z(LR)	А	$\begin{array}{c} 4476\\ 3139 \end{array}$	4345 774	4604 4372	
	В	4476 3615	3789 790	$\begin{array}{c} 5070\\ 5051\end{array}$	
S <sub>b</sub>	А	2.88 2.07	2.90 0.66	2.85 2.85	
	В	2.23 1.61	2.19 0.56	2.26 2.21	
	С	1.52 1.19	1.37 0.31	1.66 1.66	
, Sa	А	2.81 2.14	2.52 0.57	3.08 2.97	
	В	1.91 1.48	$1.94\\0.47$	1.87 2.04	
	С	1.31 $1.03$	1.26 0.28	$\begin{array}{c} 1.36\\ 1.43\end{array}$	

# TABLE XII OVERALL RMS ERRORS FOR LRMW PARAMETERS FOR 12 OBSERVATION TIMES

\*Verified back to stations used in the analysis.

*†Verified to those stations that were withheld from the analysis.* 

equations result in lower rms errors for 11 of 12 times for the analysis stations (in one case, the error is the same) and 10 of 12 times for the withheld stations. To test the significance of the better result given by the new equations, the data were subjected to the Student's t-test for paired comparisons [8]. It was found to be significant at less than the 1% level (i.e., highly significant). It is concluded that the newly defined jet-stream categories and newly derived equations produce higher quality initial guesses when  $W_{\rm SM} > 100$  knots than the LMW equations. For the lower wind speed verification categories (i.e.,  $W_{\rm SM} = 60-100$  knots and < 60 knots), the difference in the LRMW and LMW errors for the initial-guess fields was insignificant.

For the other four LRMW fields, the error statistics are considered to be low enough to indicate that the analyses are of high quality although the errors for h(LR) are higher than one might hope for. The computation of an estimated thickness that may produce relatively large errors over about 20% of the analysis area is probably the prime reason for the relatively high errors. The discussion of the analyses of the LRMW parameters presented in the next section shows an example of a h(LR) map and suggests a method for detecting areas where large errors are likely, and a solution to the problem.

The verification statistics for all the LRMW parameters show that the reduction of the total rms error from the initial guess to the final pass is due almost entirely to the reduction of the rms error at analysis stations. At times, the withheld station rms error is somewhat higher for the final pass than it was for the initial guess. Similar results were obtained for the LMW technique. Logical reasons were presented in the previous report [6] and are repeated here:

"(a) The analysis station rms error essentially indicates how well the analysis technique fits the observations (and these stations may be considered as minimum error points over the analysis area).

"(b) The withheld stations, which approximate maximum error points do not contribute to the analysis, by definition. A station withheld over a sparse data area may be the only station in the area (e.g., a stationary weather ship in the ocean) and the analysis over that area will remain unchanged from the initial guess to the final pass.

"(c) Withheld stations over a medium or high data-density area are not allowed to influence the analysis. The surrounding analysis stations, however, may change the analysis to the extent that the point at which there is a with-

held station observation may actually be in less agreement with the final analysis than it was with the initial-guess analysis."

One of the deficiencies of the previous LMW technique was the difficulty of specifying the height of the level of maximum wind, Z(L), because sometimes high wind speeds were evident over a thick layer. This was especially true when the maxima were between 50 and 100 knots with the height of the LMW varying widely over adjacent grid points or stations. Thus, the rms errors for the initial guess and final pass of Z(L) for verification categories A and B were: A (> 100 knots)-4818 ft and 3533 ft, respectively; B (50-100 knots)-7378 ft and 5738 ft, respectively.

The mean height of the layer of maximum wind,  $\overline{Z}(LR)$ , is easier to specify and more meaningful, particularly for verification Category B, as is apparent from comparison of the  $\overline{Z}(LR)$  errors with the Z(L) errors.

For the shears below and above the LRMW, the rms errors are about the same as those that were associated with the LMW. It is indicative of a very good specification of the LRMW shear field because this result was achieved in spite of the fact that they are <u>vector</u> shears for the layer 5,000 ft below and above the LRMW instead of <u>scalar</u> shears for the layer 10,000 ft below and above the LMW. The difference in the shear criteria (LRMW and LMW) result in higher average values for shears (by  $2 \text{ knots } 10^{-3} \text{ ft}^{-1}$ ) and generally higher standard deviations (by  $1-2 \text{ knots } 10^{-3} \text{ ft}^{-1}$ ) for the LRMW shears over the LMW shears (see Table V of this report and Table IV of [6]).

# 5.2 Objective (computer) versus Subjective (man) LRMW Analysis Comparison

Figures 10-14 illustrate objective and subjective analyses of LRMW parameters. In general, these charts and others reveal that there are only minor differences in the analyses over the dense data areas (e.g., the U.S.), but differences are more noticeable over the sparse data areas (e.g., Canada). These differences are attributed primarily to the human analyst drawing to the available data which results in a tendency for maxima and minima to be positioned close to the observing stations when, in reality, they may be some distance away.

The objective thickness of the LRMW clearly indicates some unrealistically strong gradients over small areas of the western Pacific [Fig. 11 (a)]. These are



Fig. 10(a). Objective maximum wind speed, 1200Z, 3 January 1963.



Fig. 10(b). Subjective maximum wind speed, 1200Z, 3 January 1963.



Fig. 11(a). Objective thickness of LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963.



Fig. 11(b). Subjective thickness of LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963.



Fig. 12(a). Objective mean height of LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963.

.









-

4

inter,







Fig. 14(a). Objective vector shear above the LRMW, 1200Z, 3 January 1963.





Date		Analysis LRMW	Station rms error LMW	Withheld station rms error LRMW LMW	
Jan	1	14.3	22.3	20.2	23.4
Jan	2	16.3	22.1	11.9	17.3
Jan	3	27.1	27.1	9.2	19.7
Jan	4	19.3	22.4	21.2	20.2
Jan	5	16.5	24.4	20.3	26.3
Jan	6	18.2	21.2	21.1	26.3
Jan	7	18.7	28.0	13.9	15.6
Jan	8	15.0	30.0	13.2	23.6
Jan	9	5.8	7.6	18.4	19.8
Jan	12	13.7	27.0	18.8	20.7
Jan	13	15.2	21.4	14.0	11.0
Jan	14	15.2	19.7	13.5	19.6

# TABLE XIIILRMW VERSUS LMW COMPARISON: CATEGORY A (W SM > 100 knots)INITIAL-GUESS VERIFICATION STATISTICS

entirely due to a value at one grid point that is in considerable variance with the surrounding grid points. The average of the four points surrounding the central point, for each of the four areas of strong gradients, is > 11,000 ft different than the value for the central point. It is very likely that these are instances where the wrong category equation is used, as discussed in Sections II and III. The analyses over these areas can be subjectively (or objectively) adjusted to be more consistent with the surrounding grid points and a high degree of confidence may be placed in the adjusted analysis if the strong gradient is due to a single grid point value (as it is for these cases).

## 5.3 Consistency between LRMW Parameters

A study of the LRMW objective analyses showed that they were consistent with one another. For example: (a) the maximum vertical shears correspond closely to the jet cores [Figs. 13 (a) and 14 (a)]; (b) the mean height of the LRMW is at low elevation for the mid- and high-latitude polar jets (as well as for polar jets at the lower end of deep troughs that extend into the subtropics) [Fig. 12(a)], and (c) the mean height of the LRMW is at higher elevations for subtropical jets in the lower latitudes (as well as for jets located to the north of mid- or high-latitude anticyclones) [Fig. 12(a)].

The problem of low shear values sometimes appearing near jet cores in the analysis of the LMW parameters [6] was largely eliminated by the specification of shears below and above the <u>LRMW</u> instead of below and above the LMW. (The LMW was difficult to specify in cases of thick vertical layers of high wind speed, and either the shear below, above, or both were sometimes computed to be relatively low values depending on where in the layer the level of maximum wind was specified.)

The thickness of the LRMW is usually < 10,000 ft near the jet cores for the series of maps, and thickness maxima are often located between two jet cores; this is in agreement with what is known to occur. For example, over the north central U.S. on January 3, 1963 at 1200Z there is a polar jet core  $[Z(LR) \sim 32,000 \text{ ft}]$  and the subtropical jet is located over the south-central U.S. and extends into the Central Gulf of Mexico  $[\overline{Z}(LR) \sim 40,000 \text{ ft}]$ . The thickness of the LRMW shows minima (~ 8,000 ft) along both cores and a maximum of 16,000 ft between the two cores, probably indicating the presence of both jets in this area, with the  $\overline{Z}(LR)$  at about 36,000 ft.

On the wind speed maximum analysis charts, the generated observations along the jet cores tend to elongate the maximum wind isotachs from those isotachs on the initial-guess chart. The purpose of the generated observations is to give a better representation of the wind field in the vicinity of the jet. In some areas on some charts in the series, withheld-station. observations near jet cores permitted a check on whether this was being carried out. It was determined that for most cases the generated observations did give a better representation of the wind field.
#### SECTION IV

### CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The definition and objective analysis of a <u>layer</u> of maximum wind (LRMW) and its associated parameters of wind speed maximum, thickness, mean height, and vector shears below and above the LRMW leads to a realistic three-dimensional picture of the jet stream.

The categorization procedures for wind profiles that result in nine jet-stream categories for which initial-guess regression equations were derived provide high quality initial-guess fields for the LRMW parameters.

A significant improvement is achieved in the initial-guess specification of the wind speed maximum, in areas where the speed exceeds 100 knots, over that given by the <u>level</u> of maximum wind (LMW) equations [6]. This is due to the refinement in the categorization procedure that includes an estimated thickness of the LRMW as part of the definition criteria.

Tests of the LRMW equations on independent data indicate that they are stable and capable of specifying very well the general characteristics of the LRMW profile.

The ability of the analysis technique to locate jet cores and generate "observations" along core segments results in better definition of the wind field in the vicinity of the jet stream than that given by the initial-guess "analysis". Over the data areas, where a comparison between objective and subjective analyses can be made, the objective LRMW analyses compare favorably with the subjective analyses.

Because the LRMW initial-guess regression equations require constant-pressuresurface information to specify the LRMW parameters, they are purely diagnostic equations, but may be used with prognostic fields to produce jet-stream predictions.

It is recommended that the LRMW diagnostic equations be applied to a series of prognostic constant-pressure-surface fields obtained from an operational numerical model. The resulting LRMW predictions should be verified and evaluated. If they are satisfactory, the equations can provide a relatively simple prediction technique for the LRMW parameters.

64

#### REFERENCES

Cressman, G. P., 1959: An operational objective analysis system.
 Mo. Weath. Rev., 87:10, pp. 367-374.

2. Endlich, R. M., and G. S. McLean, 1957: The structure of the jet stream core. J. Meteorol., 14, pp. 543-552.

3. —, and —, 1965: Jet-stream structure over the central United States determined from aircraft observations. J. Appl. Meteorol. 4, pp. 83-90.

4. Miller, R. G., 1958: The screening procedure. pp. 86-95 of <u>Statistical</u> <u>Weather Prediction</u> (T. F. Malone, ed.), Final Report, Contract 19(604)1590. The Travelers Weather Research Center, Hartford, Connecticut.

Reiter, E. R., 1958: The layer of maximum wind. <u>J. Meteorol.</u>, <u>15</u>, pp. 27–43.

6. Spiegler, D. B., and J. T. Ball, et al., 1965: <u>Techniques for objective</u> <u>hemispheric analysis and prediction of the jet stream</u>. Technical Report 7463-176 [ESD-TR-65-13], The Travelers Research Center, Inc.

7. Thomasell, A., 1962: <u>The areal-mean-error method of analysis verification</u>. Technical Report 7083-12, The Travelers Research Center, Inc.

8. Wadsworth, G. P., and J. G. Bryan, 1960: <u>Introduction to probability and</u> random variables. Page 225, McGraw-Hill, New York.

APPENDIX

1

LRMW INITIAL-GUESS EQUATIONS



1

$$\begin{split} & W_{sM} = 12.373 + 0.67147[W_{s}(3)] + 0.42204[W_{s}(2)] \\ & h(LR) = 529.61 + 0.40014h_{e} + 4.2752[W_{s}(2-M)] \\ & \overline{Z}(LR) = -1389.7 + 4.5992[h(5-3)] + 14.266[\Delta W(3-2)] - 0.35100[h(LR)] \\ & + 53.791[\Delta T/\Delta n(2-1)] \\ & \overline{S}_{b} = -0.36367 + 108.92S_{5} - 0.032949[W_{s}(2-M)] \\ & \overline{S}_{a} = 6.2663 + 77.157S_{1} + 0.13921[T(2)] + 0.044702[W_{s}(3-M)] \end{split}$$

$$\begin{array}{rcl} \underline{\text{CATEGORY 6: MULTIPLE, MODERATE SUBTROPICAL-POLAR JET}}\\ W_{sM} &= & 6.3829 + 0.50841 [W_{s}(2)] + 0.43791 [W_{s}(3)] + 0.11974 [W_{s}(1)]\\ h(LR) &= & 1363.0 + 0.24537 h_{e} + 3.1464 [\Delta W(7-5)] + 2.5430 [W_{s}(1-M)]\\ \overline{Z}(LR) &= & 4014.6 - & 11.804 [W_{s}(5)] + & 10.889 [W_{s}(1)] + & 16.757 [T(5)] - & 23.391 [W_{s}(3)]\\ &+ & 22.043 [W_{s}(2)]\\ \overline{S}_{b} &= & 6.8636 + & 126.478_{5} + & 0.0011678 [h(LR)] - & 0.0012614 [\overline{Z}(LR)]\\ &- & 0.02789 [W_{s}(7)] + & 0.053647 [T(3)]\\ \overline{S}_{a} &= & - & 0.85393 + & 129.068_{1} \end{array}$$

 $W_{sM} = 11.248 + 0.50325[W_s(2)] + 0.48457[W_s(3)]$  $h(LR) = -1079.1 + 0.42786h_e + 2.9815[W_s(5)] + 2.8140[\Delta W(2-1)] + 2.3720[h(3-2)]$  $\overline{Z}(LR) = -402.90 + 18.137[\Delta W(3-2)] + 4.1145[h(7-5)] + 2.7292[W_{s}(1)]$ -  $4.3702[W_{s}(5)] + 0.29092[h(LR)] - 13.770[W_{s}(2-M)]$ tsb tsa  $= 9.7026 + 0.084459[\Delta W(5-3)] - 0.0023900[\overline{Z}(LR)]$  $= 0.29497 + 221.09S_1 - 0.055363[W_s(1-M)] - 0.015380[W_s(5)]$ 

# CATEGORY 8: MODERATE POLAR JET

$$W_{sM} = 3.4559 + 1.0407[W_{s}(3)]$$

$$h(LR) = 176.37 + 0.57071h_{e} + 4.9137[W_{s}(5)]$$

$$\overline{Z}(LR) = 2988.4 + 25.356[T(5)] - 8.8904[W_{s}(5-M)] + 4.0343[W_{s}(1-M)]$$

$$- 9.0366[T(2)]$$

$$\overline{S}_{b} = - 0.59366 + 111.33S_{5} + 0.0017857[h(LR)]$$

$$\overline{S}_{a} = 0.71950 + 0.11020[W_{s}(2)] - 0.094667W_{sM} - 0.0013345[\overline{Z}(LR)]$$

$$+ 0.020708[W_{s}(1)]$$

Although the second state of the

$$W_{sM} = 9.7510 + 0.97260[W_{s}(3)]$$

$$h(LR) = -1635.3 + 0.64580h_{e} + 2.9689[\Delta W(3-2)] + 1.8193[h(5-3)]$$

$$\overline{Z}(LR) = 3566.6 + 21.726[T(5)] - 4.6704[W_{s}(5)] + 3.7669[W_{s}(2)]$$

$$\overline{S}_{b} = -3.6220 + 152.50S_{5} + 0.0027131[h(LR)]$$

$$\overline{S}_{a} = 1.1766 + 0.12513[W_{s}(2-M)] + 188.36S_{1} - 0.064509[W_{s}(1-M)]$$

UNCLASSIFIED						
Security Classification						
DOCUMENT C	ONTROL DATA - R&D					
(Security classification of title, body of abstract and inde	xing annotation must be entered wi	hen the overall report is classified)				
The Travelers Research Center, Inc.	·	20. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION Unclassified				
250 Constitution Plaza	2 b GF	25 GROUP				
Hartford, Connecticut 06103						
LAYER OF MAXIMUM W	VIND ANALYSIS TECHN	VIQUE				
4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)	T 1- 1000					
Final Report, 1 October 1965–18	5 July 1966					
5. AUTHOR(S) (Leet name, first name, initial) Spiegler, David B.						
6. REPORT DATE	7. TOTAL NO. OF PAGES	75. NO. OF REFS				
August 1966	71	8				
Sa. CONTRACT OR GRANT NO.	9. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT	NUMBER(S)				
AF19(628)-4924	E450	00.0				
D. PROJECT NO.	7479-230					
с.	9b. OTHER REPORT NO(5) (Any other numbers that may be seeigned this report)					
d.	ESD-'	<b>TR-66-344</b>				
10. A VAIL ABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES						
Qualified users may obtain copies of this	report from the Defens	e Documentation Center.				
is unlimited	12. SPONSORING MILITARY	CTIVITY				
15 utrint ceu.	Electronics Sys	tems Division				
	Air Force Syste	ems Command				
<sup>13</sup> ABSTRACT An objective <u>layer</u> of maximum and evaluated. The evaluation indicates the ment over the previously developed <u>level</u> of [Spiegler, D. B., and J. T. Ball, et al., 196 and prediction of the jet stream. Technica Research Center, Inc.]. A categorization procedure for wind is designed and used for the derivation of fields for each of five LRMW parameters. gories is a refinement of the previous sev technique. The initial-guess LRMW equat are capable of specifying, very well, the g	m wind (LRMW) analys nat the technique repre- of maximum wind (LMV 55: <u>Techniques for obje</u> al Report 7463-176 (ES profiles that results i regression equations t The stratification of en categories develope ions are stable in tests general characteristics	is technique is described sents a significant improve- W) analysis technique ective hemispheric analysis SD-TR-65-13), The Travelers in nine jet stream categories hat supply the initial-guess the profiles into nine cate- ed for the LMW analysis is with independent data and of the LRMW profile. They				

The analysis technique locates jet cores between grid points and generates observations along these cores by using models of horizontal jet profiles.

Thickness of the LRMW as one of the analysis fields in conjunction with the windspeed maximum, mean height of the LRMW, and vector shears below and above the LRMW enable the generation of a three-dimensional picture of the wind field in the vicinity <sup>1</sup> <sup>c</sup></sup> the jet stream.

Over the data areas, where a comparison between objective and subjective analyses can be made, the objective LRMW analyses compare favorably with the subjective analyses.

DD 1 JAN 64 1473

UNCLASSIFIED Security Classification

## UNCLASSIFIED

14     LUNK A     LUNK A     LUNK G     LUNK G       Layer of maximum wind Level of maximum wind Jet-stream modeling     INSTRUCTIONS     INSTRUCTIONS       1. ONGOINTING ACTIVITY Earce the mane and address of the control comparison of the control of	Security Classification							
Instructions     Note     Note<	14. Key woons		LINK A		LINK B		LINK C	
<ul> <li>Layer of maximum wind Level of maximum wind Jet-stream modeling</li> <li>I. ORGUNATING ACTIVITY: Enter the mate and address of the contract, grante, Department of Defines activity classification, using standard statements such as:</li> <li>I. ORGUNATING ACTIVITY: Forter the mate and address of the contract, grante, Department of Defines activity classification, using standard statements such as:</li> <li>I. ORGUNATING ACTIVITY: Forter the mate and address of the contract, grante, Department of Defines activity or other organization (cloppedia author) issues and activity or other organization (cloppedia author) issues and activity or other organization (cloppedia author) issues and the report.</li> <li>C. GROUF, Altonnici downgarding is specified in DoD De- rective S000.10 and Amenia Forces Industria Manual. East and the report.</li> <li>C. GROUF, TITLE: Enser the complete report tile in all far and intergent. This can all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the tube.</li> <li>S. ARTIORS: Enser the name(a) of suborts, further and the specified in DoD. De- rective S000.10 and Amenia Forces Industria Manual. East and intergent. This is an all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the tube.</li> <li>S. ARTIORS: Enser the name(a) of suborts, further and the specified in parenthesis intergent. Based act oppositions exists in parenthesis intergent in all capitals in parenthesis.</li> <li>S. ARTIORS: Enser the name(a) of suborts active statistic intergent in the report. See the specified in parenthesis intergent and the specified in the report.</li> <li>S. ARTIORS: Enser the name(a) of suborts active statistic intergent and active statistic reporting parentic in the report. See the specified in parenthesis intergent in the report. Numbers, Enser the topporting parentic in the report in a desort the report in a specified in parenthesis intergent in the report. Numbers, Enser the report is a department of the report has been intergent.</li> <li>S. ARTIORT: Enser the name of distegent the specif</li></ul>	KET WORDS		ROLE	₩T	ROLE	WΤ	ROLE	ΨT
<ul> <li>INSTRUCTIONS</li> <li>I. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, gance. Department of the preport is security classification, using standard statements of the report. SecURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether is a included. Making is to be in accords more with appropriate security regulations. Control of the report. Indicate whether is a contractor is a security classification of the report. Indicate whether is a contract of the report is a security regulation.</li> <li>2.6. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DOD Directive (2000) used Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the transmission of a control of the contract of group 3 and Group 4 as subtorized.</li> <li>3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report tille in all capsial letraction in all capsites in parenthesis in parenthesis in parenthesis in maternhamer, middle initial. If military agenetisms and observes in the contract of group of service. The name of the principal whore is an solute minimum requirement.</li> <li>4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: Inter the name, fiddle initial. If military, show rank ords means, middle initial. If military, show rank ords means fully in anome requirement.</li> <li>5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name, fiddle and septement of Commerce, for sale to the public, indicate whether and the report. Enter is as obsolute minimum requirement.</li> <li>6. REPORT DATE. There the date of the report as a dyment, see and solute minimum requirement.</li> <li>7. TOTAL NUMBER OF REFERENCES. Enter the total mumber of effections in formation.</li> <li>8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the for calloging therest and exports of the abstract that eabstract. However, the application for the inclust sectors and development indication of the inclust sectors.</li> <li>8. BONDER NORTLY LIMITATION NOTICES. Enter any limiting on the report. Rest uses a project number, such and the top orginate, and there the appropriate in the solution</li></ul>	Layer of maximum wind Level of maximum wind Jet-stream modeling							
<ol> <li>INSTRUCTIONS</li> <li>INSTR</li></ol>								
<ul> <li>a. REPORT SECUETY CLASSFICATION: Enter the over- fines activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report.</li> <li>a. REPORT SECUETY CLASSFICATION: Enter the over- mere with appropriate security regulations.</li> <li>b. GROUPE Automatic downgrading is specified in Do Di- rective \$200,10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as author- ized.</li> <li>3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report tile in all capital lettera. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title casnication in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title.</li> <li>4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: It appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.</li> <li>5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. DATE: Enter the date of the propriate, enter the date appears on the report. Num Search of bubicstion.</li> <li>6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as on the report, use date of publicstion.</li> <li>7. NUMBER OF PAGES. The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.</li> <li>7. NUMBER OF RAFERENCES. Enter the total number of references cited in the report.</li> <li>8. &amp; GATATOTO RGATN TWIMBER: It appropriate, enter the applicable number, system number, atsak number, etc.</li> <li>9. OTHER OF RAFERENCES. Enter the officiation in the report.</li> <li>8. &amp; S. &amp; B. A. PROJECT NUMBER: Sime the officiation of the indication of the indication relatenced.</li> <li>9. OTHER REPORT NUMBER: Sime the officiation astrony of the document indicative of the report. Search as project number, subproject numbers (sime the report has been assigned any other report numbers (sime the report has been assigned any other report numbers (sither by the origination cord to this report.</li></ul>	INSTR	imposed by	v eponeit-	cleerifi.	nation		dand stat-	mente
<ul> <li>2a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether security classification of the report. Indicate whether report by DDC: not authorized."</li> <li>(2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this report directly from DDC. (2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."</li> <li>(3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users shall request through."."</li> <li>(4) U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through "."</li> <li>(4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through "."</li> <li>(4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through "."</li> <li>(4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through "."</li> <li>(4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through "."</li> <li>(5) "'All distribution of the services, Department of Commerce, for aside to the public, indicate with a material author is an absolute minimum requirement.</li> <li>(6) REPORT DATE. Enter the date of the report as day, month, year, or month, year, and public minimum requirement.</li> <li>(5) NUMBER OF PREENCES Enter the appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report. Tadditional appeis a security classified. Enter the appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which report. Tadditional appeis a from 150 to 225 words.</li> <li>(6) NUMBER OF PREENCES Enter the officiel</li></ul>	I. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of De- fense activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report.	imposed by such as: (I) "	<pre>imposed by security classification, using standard statements such as:    (I) "Qualified requesters may obtain copiea of this</pre>					
<ul> <li>subproject number, system number, task number, etc.</li> <li>9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the official report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must be unique to this report.</li> <li>9b. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).</li> <li>10. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limitations on further dissemination of the report, other than those</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>the report.</li> <li>2a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the overall security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Data" is included. Marking is to be in accordance with appropriate security regulations.</li> <li>2b. GROUP: Automatic downgrading Is specified in DoD Directive 5200. 10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as authorized.</li> <li>3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital lettera. Titles in all caaes ahould be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classification, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title.</li> <li>4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.</li> <li>5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter the date of the report as day, month, year; or month, year. If more than one date appears on the report, use date of publication.</li> <li>7a. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.</li> <li>7b. NUMBER OF REFERENCES Enter the total number of references cited in the report.</li> <li>8a. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written.</li> <li>8b, &amp;, &amp; 8d. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the appropriate minitary department identification, such as project number, item the applicable number.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>(1) "Qualified requesters may obtain copiea of this report from DDC."</li> <li>(2) "Foreign announcement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."</li> <li>(3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DDC users ahall request through"</li> <li>(4) "U. S. military agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through"</li> <li>(5) "All diatribution of this report is controlled. Qualified DDC users shall request through"</li> <li>(5) "All diatribution of this report is controlled. Qualified DDC users shall request through"</li> <li>(6) "All diatribution of this report is controlled. Qualified DDC users shall request through"</li> <li>(7) If the report has been furnished to the Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, for sale to the public, indicate this fact and enter the price, if known.</li> <li>II. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES: Use for additional explanatory notes.</li> <li>I2. SPONSORING MILITARY ACTIVITY: Enter the name of the departmental project office or laboratory sponsoring (paying for) the research and development. Include address.</li> <li>I3. ABSTRACT: Enter an abstract giving a brief and factual summary of the document indicative of the report, even though it may also appear elsewhere in the body of the technical report. If additional apace is required, a continuation sheet shall be attached.</li> <li>It is highly desirable that the abstract of classified report be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstract shall end with an indication of the military security classification of the information in the paragraph, represented as (T5). (S). (C). or (U) There is no limitation cn the length of the abstract. However, the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words.</li> </ul>						
A BLIGHT ON A BILLET UTSSCHITTATION OF THE TEDOLT, UTTEL THAT THOSE	<ul> <li>subproject number, system numbera, task number, etc.</li> <li>9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the official report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number muat be unique to this report.</li> <li>9b. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s).</li> <li>10. AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES: Enter any limitations on further discomination of the most of the sponsor.</li> </ul>	14. KEY WORDS: Key words are technically meaningful t or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be selected so that no security classification is required. Ide fiers, such as equipment model designation, trade name, m project code name, geographic location, may be used as ke words but will be followed by an indication of technical co text. The assignment of links, rules, and weights is optio						l terms sed as be Identi- military key con- tional.

UNCLASSIFIED Security Classification ٢.